
 

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Gemma George on 01733 452268. 
 

 

ABABABAB    
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
MEETING LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

DATE: TUESDAY 28 JUNE 2011 
 

TIME: 9.30 am 
 

VENUE: FORLI ROOM 
 

CONTACT: Gemma George: Senior Governance Officer 
Telephone: 01733 452268 
e-mail address: gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk 
 

Despatch date: 20 June 2011 

 
 

AGENDA  

 PAGE NO 

 
1. Apologies for Absence 

 
 

2. Declarations of Interest 
 

 

3. Application for Review of Premises Licence - Kaimas Lithuanian 
Restaurant, 561 - 563 Lincoln Road, Peterborough, PE1 2PB 
 

1 - 70 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



  

LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB COMMITTEE 

 

AGENDA ITEM No. 3 

28 JUNE 2011 PUBLIC REPORT 

Contact Officers:  
Adrian Day, Licensing Manager  

Terri Martin,  Regulatory Officer Licensing 

Tel: 454437 

Tel. 453561 

 

 
APPLICATION:        Review of Premises Licence  
                      

 

 
PREMISES:           Kaimas Lithuanian Restaurant, 561-563 Lincoln Road, Peterborough, PE1                  

2PB 
 

 

 
REFERENCE NUMBER:       MAU 061205 
                                  

 

 
GLOSSARY OF TERMS:  Attached at Appendix A – Page 6 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To consider and determine an application for a review of a Premises Licence under Section 

51 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the above premises, taking into account the representation 
made by Pollution Control and Planning in their capacities as a Responsible Authorities, 
and representations from two interested parties.  The review was bought under the 
Prevention of Public Nuisance objective.  

 
2.    BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
2.1 On the 4 August 2005 a conversion application was submitted by Mr Ibrahim Hassan to 

convert a justices restaurant licence to a premises licence, at that time the premises was 
called Meze Meze, and was a ground floor restaurant only.  As no objections were received 
from the police, the licence was granted on 9 September 2005. 

 
2.2 On the 12 February 2008 an application to transfer the premises licence to Mr Darr was 

received.  As no representations were received the application was granted on the 29 
February 2008.  At this time the premises was called Al-Aziz. 

 
2.3 On the 15 February 2008 an application to vary the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) 

to Mr Darr was received.  As no representations were received the application was granted 
on the 3 March 2008. 

 
2.4 On the 25 March 2010 an application to transfer the premises licence to Mr Aidas 

Meckauskas with immediate effect was received.  As no representations were received, the 
application was granted. 

 
2.5 On the 26 March 2010 an application to vary the DPS to Mr Aidas Meckauskas with 

immediate effect was received.  As no representations were received the application was 
granted. 

1



  

2.6 On the 21 September 2010 an application for a variation of the premises licence was 
received.  This was withdrawn by the applicant’s representative. 

 
2.7 On 2 November 2010 an application for a variation of the premises licence was received. 

Representations were received from Cambridgeshire Constabulary and Pollution Control as 
Responsible Authorities, and three interested parties.  The objections had regard to the 
prevention of crime and disorder, public safety and prevention of public nuisance 
objectives.  A committee hearing to determine the application took place on 15 December 
2010 and the application was granted with reduced hours to those applied for and extra 
conditions to the operating schedule. 

 
2.8 On 17 November 2010 Mr Meckauskas applied for several Temporary Event Notices 

(TEN’s), a table of the dates, timings and licensable activities of these TEN’s is attached at 
Appendix B – Page 9 

 
2.9 On 23 March 2011 a minor variation application was received to update the ground floor 

plan to reflect the current layout of the premises.  As no objections were received the 
application was granted 14 April 2011.  A copy of the current licence is attached at 
Appendix C – Page 11 

 
3. APPLICATION 
 
3.1  In accordance with section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003 following the submission of an 

application to review the premises licence from Pollution Control, a Responsible Authority, 
the licensing authority must hold a hearing.  
 

3.2  A copy of the application to review was received 4 May 2011, this application was revised 
(for clarification purposes) a copy of this revised application was served on the licence 
holder and is attached at Appendix D – Page 23 

 
3.3    A copy of the ‘Notice’ that was displayed on the premises in accordance with Part 5 no. 38  

of Statutory Instruments 2005 No. 42 – The Licensing Act 2003 (Premises Licences and 
Club Premises Certificates) Regulations 2005 is attached at Appendix E – Page 31 
 

3.4 A representation was received from Planning as a Responsible Authority, a copy of this 
representation is attached at Appendix F – Page 33 

 
3.5 No other representations have been received from any of the remaining Responsible 

Authorities. 
 
3.6 Representations have been received from two interested parties, one as a resident in the 

vicinity and one from a business operating in the vicinity.  These representations are 
attached at Appendix G – Page 35 

 
3.7 A statement (rebuttal) from the licence holder refuting the basis of the review was received 

on the 31 May 2011 with a petition in support of the premises licence containing 772 
signatures. The statement is attached at Appendix H – Page 39 

 
3.8 A copy of the petition is attached at Appendix I – Page 47 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2



  

 

4. RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY 

 

LICENSING 
OBJECTIVE: 

REPRESENTATIVE: 

Prevention of 
Public Nuisance 

 

Responsible Authority: Pollution Control 

As per the application for review attached at Appendix D – Page 23 
 
Responsible Authority: Planning attached at Appendix F – Page 
33 
 
To comply with the Data Protection Act all letters have been 
distributed to Committee Members and the applicant, but are 
not for public circulation 

 

4.1 Summary of issues raised by Responsible Authorities  

i)  Investigations have provided evidence that a statutory nuisance exists and has the 
likelihood to reoccur. 

ii) Noise complaints continue to be received 
iv) Requests made by Police to reduce the noise was not complied with 
v) Allegation of breaches of premises licence conditions and unauthorised licensable 

activities taking place at the premises. 
vi) Prohibitive use of the first floor by Planning legislation 
  

5. INTERESTED PARTIES 

 

LICENSING 
OBJECTIVE: 

REPRESENTATIVE: 

Prevention of 
Public Nuisance 

 

Interested Party:  Resident in the vicinity 

 
Interested Party: A person involved in a business within the vicinity 
 
To comply with the Data Protection Act all letters have been 
distributed to Committee Members and the applicant, but are 
not for public circulation 

 

5.1 Summary of issues raised by Interested parties 

i) Noise from premises causing a sleep deprivation and disturbance 
ii) Noise issues from loud music and noisy patrons 
iii) Anti social behaviour from patrons (shouting, singing etc) 
iv) Potential of property unable to be rented due to noise issues from premises 
  

6. STATEMENT AND PETITION IN SUPPORT OF THE PREMISES LICENCE. 

6.1 A petition from the patrons of the premises containing 772 signatures in support of the 
premises licence has been received.  Some signatories are within the vicinity and some are 
from further afield e.g. Spalding, London, Luton, Basildon, Kings Lynn.  Therefore, it is up to 
the committee to decide upon what ‘weight’ they attach to this petition.  This is attached at 
Appendix I – Page 47 

6.2 A statement from the Licence holder (who is also the Designated Premises Supervisor 
(DPS)) has been received, refuting the allegations within the review.  This is attached at 
Appendix H – Page 39 

3



  

 

7 LICENSING OFFICERS COMMENTS 

7.1 When a premises operates under a Temporary Event Notice (TEN) authorisation, the 
conditions of the premises licence do not take effect.  However, a TEN does not remove the 
premises users obligations under any other legislation including that of a statutory 
nuisance. 

7.2 Entertainment at a ‘private event’ to which the public are not admitted is not a licensable 
activity unless it is provided for consideration and with a view to profit.   Also, consumption 
of alcohol is not a licensable activity.  Therefore the provision of alcohol completely free of 
charge is not a licensable activity. 

7.3 The licensing department received a phone call from Mr Meckauskas on the 24 March 
2011, advising that he was having a live music event on the 25 March 2011, this notification 
is required by condition 26 of the premises licence.  However the event on the 25 March is 
declared as a ‘private event’ in the statement provided by Mr Meckauskas.  If this was the 
case, notification was not required as the premises licence authorisation was not being 
utilised. 

8. POLICY & GUIDANCE IMPLICATIONS 
 

8.1 The following sections/paragraphs are applicable to this application: 
 

8.2 Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy  
 
- Fundamental Principles: section 6 on Page 6 
- Other Regulatory Systems / Policies: section 8 page 7 
- Reviews: section 16 on Page 12 and 13 
- Delegation / Decision Making / Administration: Section 17 page 13 and 14 
 

8.3 Guidance Issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (October 2010) 
 

- Public Nuisance: Section 2.32 to 2.40 pages 23 to 25 
- Reviews: Section 11 pages 98 to 102 
- Determining applications: Section 9 pages 78 to 81 
 

 

9. LEGAL OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 

9.1 The Licensing Authority (hereafter referred to as “the Council) is charged with implementing 
the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003.  This is an application for a review of a premises 
licence following the application by Pollution Control (Responsible Authority) to review the 
premises licence made under section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003.  

 

9.2 In this case, the application was received at these offices on 4 May 2011. 
 

9.3   The application before this committee will consider –  
 

         (i) The application to review the licence, 
(ii) Any relevant representations 
 

9.4  The committee will take such of the steps as it considers that action is necessary for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. The steps are –  

 

(a)  to modify the conditions of the premises licence 
(b)   to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence 
(c)   to remove the designated premises supervisor from the licence 
(d)   to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months, or  
(e)   to revoke the licence 
and for this purpose the conditions of the licence are modified if any of them is altered or 
omitted or any new condition is added 
 

4



  

 
9.5 In addition the guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 states: 
 

‘The licensing authority may decide that no action is necessary if it finds that the review 
does not require it to take any steps necessary to promote the licensing objectives. In 
addition, there is nothing to prevent a licensing authority issuing an informal warning to the 
licence holder and/or to recommend improvement within a particular time. It is expected 
that licensing authorities will regard such warnings as an important mechanism for ensuring 
that the licensing objectives are effectively promoted and that warnings should be in issued 
in writing to the holder of the licence. But, where responsible authorities like the police or 
environmental health officers have already issued warnings requiring improvements – 
either orally or in writing – that have failed as part of their own stepped approach to 
concerns, licensing authorities should not merely repeat that approach.  

5



  

LICENSING ACT 2003            APPENDIX A 
GLOSSARY OF TERMS 
 

Note:  In this document, the following definitions are included to provide an explanation of 
certain terms included in the Act.  In some cases they are an abbreviation of what is stated in 
the Licensing Act 2003 or an interpretation of those terms.  For a full definition of the terms 
used, the reader must refer to the Licensing Act 2003. 

 
      ‘Child’  

(a) means an individual aged under 16 
(b) a child is unaccompanied if he is not in the company of an individual aged 18 years or over 

  
DCMS:      Department for Culture Media and Sport 

 
‘Designated Premises Supervisor’ means the person (who must be a Personal Licence 
Holder), in the case of premises selling alcohol, who will normally have been given the day to 
day responsibility for running the premises by the holder of the Premises Licence or will be the 
Premises Licence holder. 

 
‘Interested parties’: 
- a person living in the vicinity of the premises in question; 
- a body representing persons living in that vicinity, e.g. a residents association; 
- a person involved in a business in the vicinity of the premises in question; 
- a body representing persons involved in such a business e.g. a trade association 
- a member of the relevant licensing authority. 

 
‘Late Night Refreshment’ means the supply of hot food or hot drink to members of the public 
(whether for consumption on or off the premises) between the hours of 11.00 pm and 5.00 am. 

 
‘Licensable Activities’ means: - 

 

• The sale by retail of alcohol 

• The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of, a member of the 
club 

• The provision of Regulated Entertainment 

• The provision of Late Night Refreshment 
 

‘Licensing Authority’:  - is the licensing function of Peterborough City Council 
 

‘Licensed Premises’ includes club premises and events unless the context otherwise 
requires. 

 
      ‘Licensing Objectives’ 
 

• The prevention of crime and disorder 

• Public safety 

• The prevention of public nuisance 

• The protection of children from harm 
 

‘Operating Schedule’ means a document containing a statement of the following matters (and 
any others that may be prescribed): - 

 

• The relevant Licensable Activities 

• The times at which the Licensable Activities are to take place and any other times when 
premises are open to the public 

• Information regarding the person who will be specified in the Premises Licence as the 
Premises Supervisor 

• Where the Licensable Activities involve the supply of alcohol, whether it is for the supply 
on and/or off the premises 

6



  

• The steps being taken to promote the Licensing Objectives 
 
‘Rateable Value’: as regards a premises, is the value for the time being in force for the premises 
entered in the local non-domestic rating list for the purposes of Part III of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1988(b).  
 
‘Regulated Entertainment’ (Schedule 1 of the Act) means: - 
 

• A performance of a play 

• An exhibition of a film 

• An indoor sporting event 

• A boxing or wrestling entertainment 

• A performance of live music 

• Any playing of recorded music 

• A performance of dance 
 

Or entertainment of a similar description falling within the last three of the categories listed 
above, where the entertainment takes place in the presence of and for the purposes of 
entertaining that audience or spectators. 

 
Or the provision of entertainment facilities: 
 
Facilities for enabling persons to take part in entertainment of the following description for the 
purpose or purposes, which include the purpose of being entertained: 
- making music 
- dancing 
- entertainment of a similar description 

 
‘Relevant Licensing Authority’:     is the Authority in the area the premises are situated. 
 
 
‘Responsible Authority’ means any of the following: - 
 

• Cambridgeshire Constabulary (The Chief Officer of Police) 

• Cambridgeshire Fire and Rescue (The Fire Authority) 

• Health and Safety Team, Peterborough City Council 

• Planning authority, Peterborough City Council 

• Trading Standards, Peterborough City Council 

• Environmental Health – Pollution, Peterborough City Council 

• Children’s’ Services – Child Protection & Review Manager 

• Maritime & Coastguard Agency, Walton on Naze. (For vessels carrying more than 12 
passengers.)  

• Environment Agency, Peterborough (For vessels carrying 12 or less passengers).  
 

‘Supply of alcohol’: 
  
- the sale by retail of alcohol, or 
- the supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of, a member of the club. 

 
‘Temporary Event Notice’ means a Permitted Temporary Activity involving one or more 
Licensable Activities subject to the following various conditions and limitations: - 
 

• Duration – they are limited to events lasting for up to 96 hours; 

• Scale – they cannot involve the presence of more than 499 people at any one time; 

• Use of the same premises – the same premises cannot be used on more than 12 
occasions in a calendar year, but are subject to the overall aggregate of 15 days 
irrespective of the number of occasions on which they have been used; and 

7



  

• The number of notices given by an individual within a given period of time – a Personal 
Licence Holder is limited to 50 notices in one year, and another person to 5 notices in a 
similar period. 

 
(In any other circumstances, a full Premises Licence or Club Premises Certificate will be required 
for the period of the event). 
 

‘the Act’: means the Licensing Act 2003 
 
‘Vicinity’: Given the normal everyday meaning of being ‘near to’ when considering the relevance 
of representations received from individual’s residence or business.  
 

 

 

Licensing Act 2003\glossary of terms 13 March 2007 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8



APPENDIX B

Table of TEN authorisations applied for on 17 November 2010 

Ref No Date and time of event Licensable Activities notified 

060372 From 20.00 on 10/12/10 to 02.00 on 
11/12/10

Retail sale of alcohol on the 
premises, regulated 
entertainment and late night 
refreshment

060373 From 20.00 on 23/12/10 to 02.00 on 
26/12/10

Retail sale of alcohol on the 
premises, regulated 
entertainment and late night 
refreshment

060374 From 20.00 on 27/12/10 to 02.00 on 
28/12/10

Retail sale of alcohol on the 
premises, regulated 
entertainment and late night 
refreshment

060375 From 20.00 on 31/12/10 to 02.00 on 
1/1/11

Retail sale of alcohol on the 
premises, regulated 
entertainment and late night 
refreshment

9



10

This page is intentionally left blank



PART A 

Premises Licence

Peterborough City Council, Operations Directorate,  
Bridge House, Town Bridge, Peterborough, PE1 1HU 

Premises Licence Number 060906

Part 1 - Premises Details 

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 

Kaimas Lithuanian Restaurant 
561-563 Lincoln Road 

Post Town Peterborough Post Code PE1 2PB 

Telephone Number 01733 555597 

Where the licence is time limited the dates 

Start Date N/A
End Date N/A

Licensable activities authorised by the licence 

Live Music 
The live music will take place indoors. 
Live Music permitted on the ground floor only 

Recorded Music 
The recorded music will take place indoors. 

Provision of late night refreshment 
The provision of late night refreshment will take place indoors.

Sale by retail of alcohol 
The supply of alcohol will be for consumption on the premises ancillary to a main meal. 

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 

Live Music
Friday to Saturday Between 19.00hrs and 00.00hrs 
Non-standard timings Six occasions per annum, the Licensing Team must be informed of the 

event 24 hours in advance and the events must only take place on 
Fridays and Saturdays. 

New Years Eve from the end of the permitted hours on New Years Eve 
to the start of permitted hours on New Years Day. 

Page 1 of 8 

APPENDIX C

11



Page 2 of 8 

Recorded Music
Monday to Thursday Between 12.00hrs and 00.00hrs 
Friday to Saturday Between 12.00hrs and 01.00hrs 
Sunday Between 12.00hrs and 00.00hrs 
Non-standard timings New Years Eve from the end of the permitted hours on New Years Eve 

to the start of permitted hours on New Years Day. 

Provision of late night refreshment
Monday to Thursday Between 23.00hrs and 00.00hrs 
Friday to Saturday Between 12.00hrs and 01.00hrs 
Sunday Between 12.00hrs and 00.00hrs 
Non-standard timings New Years Eve from the end of the permitted hours on New Years Eve 

to the start of permitted hours on New Years Day. 

Sale by Retail of Alcohol Ancillary to a Main Meal.
Monday to Thursday Between 12.00hrs and 00.00hrs 
Friday to Saturday Between 12.00hrs and 01.00hrs 
Sunday Between 12.00hrs and 00.00hrs 
Non-standard timings New Years Eve from the end of the permitted hours on New Years Eve 

to the start of permitted hours on New Years Day. 

The opening hours of the premises
Monday to Thursday Between 12.00hrs and 00.00hrs 
Friday to Saturday Between 12.00hrs and 01.00hrs 
Sunday Between 12.00hrs and 00.00hrs 
Non-standard timings New Years Eve from the end of the permitted hours on New Years Eve 

to the start of permitted hours on New Years Day. 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and / or off 
supplies

The supply of alcohol will be for consumption on the premises. 

12



Page 3 of 8 

Part 2 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of 
premises licence 

Mr Aidas Meckauskas 
8 Saffron Court 
Park Road 
Peterborough
PE1 2US 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where 
applicable)

N/A

Name, address and  telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the 
premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol  

Mr Aidas Meckauskas 
8 Saffron Court 
Park Road 
Peterborough
PE1 2US 

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated 
premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol 
Licence Number 057644
Issuing Authority Peterborough City Council  

13



Page 4 of 8 

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions

Licensees should note that the under enclosed Mandatory conditions should be read in 
conjunction with the granted licence and these conditions shall be enforceable where 
relevant to the operation of the premise and its activities. 

Supply of alcohol (Premises Licence) 

This registration authorises the supply of alcohol subject to the following conditions:

1.  No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when 

(a) there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence, 
or
(b) when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or 
his personal licence is suspended. 

2.  Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by 
a person who holds a personal licence. 

3. The responsible person shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that staff on 
relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible 
promotions in relation to the premises. 

An irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, or 
substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or 
supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises in a manner which carries a 
significant risk of leading or contributing to crime and disorder, prejudice to public 
safety, public nuisance, or harm to children– 

Games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or 
encourage, individuals to–  

Drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or 
supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the 
responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or  

Drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);  

Provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic 
(other than any promotion or discount available to an individual in respect of 
alcohol for consumption at a table meal, as defined in section 159 of the Act);  

Provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage 
or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or 
less;

Provision of free or discounted alcohol in relation to the viewing on the premises of 
a sporting event, where that provision is dependent on–  

The outcome of a race, competition or other event or process, or  

The likelihood of anything occurring or not occurring;  

Selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or 
in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, 
encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of 
drunkenness in any favourable manner.

14



Page 5 of 8 

4. The responsible person shall ensure that no alcohol is dispensed directly by one 
person into the mouth of another (other than where that other person is unable to 
drink without assistance by reason of a disability). 

5.  The responsible person shall ensure that free tap water is provided on request to 
customers where it is reasonably available. 

6. (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure that 
an age verification policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of 
alcohol.

(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be 
under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to 
produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their 
photograph, date of birth and a holographic mark 

7. The responsible person shall ensure that– 

(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption 
on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up 
in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to 
customers in the following measures–

(i) beer or cider: ½ pint;  

(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and

(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; and  

(b) customers are made aware of the availability of these measures. 

Door Supervision (where supervisors are engaged this condition 
applies)

8.  All door supervisors will be Security Industry Authority registered. 

15



Page 6 of 8 

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule 

All Licensing Objectives 

Crime and Disorder 

9. CCTV cameras situated both inside and outside the premises, one on each floor 
and one at the front and back doors 

Public Safety 

10. All staff will be fully trained with regards to health and safety and fire regulations 

Public Nuisance 

11.  Live music will only be performed on the ground floor of the premises 

12.  The premises licence holder will ensure that Recorded Music is played through 
speakers that are situated at the furthest possible distance from residential 
accommodation on the first floor 

13.  The premises licence holder will ensure that the volume of any recorded music will 
be decreased after midnight 

14.  Any requests from an Authorised Officer of the Council in relation to reducing noise 
levels shall be complied with 

15.  When live music takes place there will be a maximum of four performers

16.  The Licence Holder/DPS will ensure that customers arrive and depart the premises 
in a manner which will not cause annoyance to nearby residents 

Protection of Children from Harm 

17.  All staff will be fully trained with regards to the sale of alcohol and the prevention of 
underage sales 

16



Page 7 of 8 

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority  

Crime and Disorder 

18.  CCTV systems to record all areas where a licensable activity takes place 

19.  CCTV images to be kept for one month and made available for inspection upon 
request by an authorising officer of the City Council, Police Officer or Police 
Community Support Officer 

20.  CCTV to be placed in a suitable position by all exits and entrances to record all 
persons visiting and leaving the premises during the hours of licensable activity 

21.  CCTV recorded images must be of a suitable quality for evidential purpose 

Public Nuisance 

22.  The Premises Licence Holder or the Designated Premises Supervisor to ensure 
that noise does not emanate from the premises so as to not cause a nuisance. 

23.  During the playing of music, all external doors and windows to remain closed other 
than for access and egress, so as to prevent a noise nuisance emanating from the 
premises

24.  Any request from an authorised Officer of the Council, Police Officer or Police 
Community Support Officer to reduce music to an acceptable level so as not to 
cause a noise nuisance shall be complied with 

25.  Notices to be displayed in a prominent position by all exits requesting patrons to 
leave the premises quietly so as not to cause a noise nuisance in the immediate 
vicinity to neighbours 

26.  Live Music: Six occasions per annum, the Licensing Team must be informed of the 
event 24 hours in advance and the events must only take place on 
Fridays and Saturdays 

17



Annex 4 – Plans

Page 8 of 8 

18



PART B 

Premises licence summary 

Peterborough City Council, Operations Directorate,  
Bridge House, Town Bridge, Peterborough, PE1 1HU 

Premises Licence Number 060906

Premises Details 

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 

Kaimas Lithuanian Restaurant 
561-563 Lincoln Road 

Post Town Peterborough Post Code PE1 2PB 

Telephone Number 01733 555597 

Where the licence is time limited the dates 

Start Date N/A
End Date N/A

Licensable activities authorised by the licence 

Live Music 
The live music will take place indoors. 
Live Music permitted on the ground floor only 

Recorded Music 
The recorded music will take place indoors. 

Provision of late night refreshment 
The provision of late night refreshment will take place indoors.

Sale by retail of alcohol 
The supply of alcohol will be for consumption on the premises ancillary to a main meal. 

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 

Live Music
Friday to Saturday Between 19.00hrs and 00.00hrs 
Non-standard timings Six occasions per annum, the Licensing Team must be informed of the 

event 24 hours in advance and the events must only take place on 
Fridays and Saturdays. 

New Years Eve from the end of the permitted hours on New Years Eve 
to the start of permitted hours on New Years Day. 

Page 1 of 2 

19



Recorded Music
Monday to Thursday Between 12.00hrs and 00.00hrs 
Friday to Saturday Between 12.00hrs and 01.00hrs 
Sunday Between 12.00hrs and 00.00hrs 
Non-standard timings New Years Eve from the end of the permitted hours on New Years Eve 

to the start of permitted hours on New Years Day. 

Provision of late night refreshment
Monday to Thursday Between 23.00hrs and 00.00hrs 
Friday to Saturday Between 12.00hrs and 01.00hrs 
Sunday Between 12.00hrs and 00.00hrs 
Non-standard timings New Years Eve from the end of the permitted hours on New Years Eve 

to the start of permitted hours on New Years Day. 

Sale by Retail of Alcohol Ancillary to a Main Meal.
Monday to Thursday Between 12.00hrs and 00.00hrs 
Friday to Saturday Between 12.00hrs and 01.00hrs 
Sunday Between 12.00hrs and 00.00hrs 
Non-standard timings New Years Eve from the end of the permitted hours on New Years Eve 

to the start of permitted hours on New Years Day. 

The opening hours of the premises
Monday to Thursday Between 12.00hrs and 00.00hrs 
Friday to Saturday Between 12.00hrs and 01.00hrs 
Sunday Between 12.00hrs and 00.00hrs 
Non-standard timings New Years Eve from the end of the permitted hours on New Years Eve 

to the start of permitted hours on New Years Day. 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off 
supplies

The supply of alcohol will be for consumption on the premises. 

Name, (registered) address of holder of premises licence 

Mr Aidas Meckauskas 
8 Saffron Court 
Park Road 
Peterborough
PE1 2US 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where 
applicable)

N/A

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the 
supply of alcohol  

Mr Aidas Meckauskas 

Page 2 of 2 

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited  

Restricted

20



21



22

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX D

23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



LICENSING ACT 2003 

NOTICE OF REVIEW OF PREMISES LICENCE 

Notice is given that Peterborough City Council, as the 
Licensing Authority, has on the 04th of May 2011 been 
asked to review the Premises Licence for the following 
licensed premises: 

Kaimas Lithuanian Restaurant, 561-563 Lincoln Road, 
Peterborough, PE1 2PB 

The grounds for review are made by Pollution Control 
under the Licensing Objective ‘Public Nuisance’.

Anyone wishing to make representations concerning this 
review should do so in writing to: 

Peterborough City Council, Licensing Section, Bridge 
House, Town Bridge, Peterborough, PE1 1HU 

Representations in respect to this review must reach the 
Licensing Authority by 1st June 2011 

Persons wishing to inspect the review application may do 
so by attending the office of the licensing section during 
office hours, Monday to Friday. Alternatively the review 
application may be viewed on the public register section of 
the Licensing Authorities website, 

http://www.peterborough.gov.uk/page-5436

It is an offence knowingly or recklessly to make a false 
statement in connection with an application, the maximum 
fine for which on summary conviction is £5000 

APPENDIX E

31



32

This page is intentionally left blank



1 June 2011 

Dear Sir/Madam 

Application for review of the premises licence (Licensing Act 2003) Ref No 
061205
And
Breach of planning condition 
Kaimas Lithuanian Restaurant 561 - 563 Lincoln Road Peterborough PE1 2PB 

Further to the proposed review of the premises licence (Ref No 061205) regarding
the Kaimas Lithuanian Restaurant at 561 - 563 Lincoln Road, Peterborough, 
PE1 2PB, the Local Planning Authority wishes to object to the use of the upper floor 
as part of the existing restaurant. 

The planning permission to use the ground floor of the above premises as a 
restaurant was granted on 10.05.2001 under reference 01/00225/FUL. The planning 
decision notice includes at condition 5 the following text: 

The restaurant and hot food takeaway use hereby permitted shall be limited to the 
ground floor of the premises (Nos. 561 and 563 Lincoln Road) only.  

The condition specifically prevents the use of the first floor as a restaurant because it 
would have a significant detrimental impact on the adjacent terraced properties that 
were and can be used for residential purposes. The impact of noise and vibration 
from the restaurant use on the upper floor, which could be directly adjacent to 
possible bedrooms in the neighbouring residential uses, could not be readily 
addressed by the provision of sound proofing or other enforceable planning 
conditions.

Furthermore, The Local Planning Authority received a planning compliance complaint 
on 27.01.2011 that the upper floor of the above premises is being used as a 
restaurant.

The use of the upper floor as a restaurant was established by site visit on 
01.02.2011. A letter dated 08.02.2011 was sent to the owner and the restaurant 
operator advising that the use of the upper floor as a restaurant was unauthorised 
and that it should cease as soon as possible and specifically not later than 8/3/11. 
The recipients chose not to end the use of the upper floor by the due date and this 
was confirmed by site visit on 08/03/2011. 

As the existing use of the upper floor is in breach of the planning permission to use 
the ground floor as a restaurant, the Group Manager, Development Management 
within the planning Service has instructed that a planning enforcement notice should 
be served for breach of the above planning condition. The purpose of the notice 
would be to put a stop the unauthorised use of the upper floor as a restaurant. The 
service of the enforcement notice has been held in abeyance pending one further 
letter of warning to the interested parties (Owner, operator and any mortgage 
providers) and the out come of this licence review.  

The Local Planning Authority is also aware that the restaurant activity on the ground 
floor is likely to have an impact on the residential amenity of the adjacent dwellings. It 

APPENDIX F

33



would support the suggested revisions to the licence, as they would minimise the 
impact of the ground restaurant use on the neighbouring properties. 

It is respectfully requested that when considering the review of the licence for the 
above premises, the licensing panel takes into account the views of the Local 
Planning Authority that the continued use of the upper floor of the above premises as 
a restaurant is unacceptable. 

Yours faithfully 

Mr Nigel Barnes 
Compliance Team Leader 

34



 

                                                             

           

                                                                                                                       Derek & Anita Nicholls 

                                                    565 & 565A Lincoln Road 

                                                                                                                       Peterborough 

                                                                                                                       27
th

 May 2011 

 

 

Licensing 

Operations Directorate 

Bridge House 

Town Bridge 

Peterborough 

PE1 1HU 

 

Representation for review of premises licence for Kaimas  Lithuanian Restaurant, 561!563 Lincoln 

Road, Peterborough 

 

I wish to make a representation for the review of the premises licence for Kaimas restaurant on 

Lincoln Road, Peterborough, we are the owners of the property 565/565A Lincoln Road which is 

attached to Kaimas Restaurant.   

 

We have tenants living above the Scizzoroom which is 565A but unfortunately since Kaimas has 

opened they have had nothing but trouble with the noise pollution from the restaurant on a Friday 

and Saturday evening.  When we rented our flat to our tenants we told them how nice and quiet the 

flat was, we were not telling an untruth, we have owned the property for several years and never 

experienced any noise pollution from the previous occupants  of the property. 

 

We have spent a lot of money renovating the property to attract decent tenants, which we have 

found but due to the problems of very loud noise from the restaurant our tenants said they have 

had enough and want to move out. 

 

How are we supposed to get anybody to live in a flat where they can’t sleep on a Friday or Saturday 

evening until the noise stops very late into the night. 

 

We have rang the council several times for our tenants as we feel terrible that they have to live like 

this.  I know we wouldn’t and I’m sure nobody would chose to live like this. 

 

The police have been called numerous times regarding the noise and agreed that it was in excess of 

the agreed level that is acceptable.  The council have also monitored the noise levels and found 

them to be above acceptable levels.   How many times do people have to break the law before 

something is done about it? 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX G

35



 

 

 

If this problem is not sorted out and our tenants move out would the owners of the restaurant or 

the council want to pay the rent for the flat every month because nobody else will.   If we don’t get 

the rent paid we can’t pay our business rates vicious circle isn’t it! 

 

I hope that the correct action is taken against the Kaimas Restaurant and that life can get back to 

normal for our tenants which they deserve as being hard working couple that just need sleep! 

 

Regards 

 

 

 

Derek & Anita Nicholls 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

36



                          Miss Valentina Vrablova and 
                                                                                  Mr Piotr Kaznowski-Kicinger 

                                                                                               565A Lincoln Road 
          Peterborough                           

                                        PE1 2PB 
                                                                                                            

Representation for the review of a permits licence for Kaimas restaurant 

I wish to make a representation as a response to an application for a licence review 

for Kaimas restaurant on Lincoln Road. Due to the problems I am currently 
experiencing, I feel that the extended hours they have applied for would have a 

serious detrimental effect on my home life. I also feel that since regulated 
entertainment has been allowed on the first floor it exacerbated the problem I have 

with noise from music and patrons of the premises. 

Me and my boyfriend have moved to 565A Lincoln Road before Lithuanian restaurant 

Kaimas was opened. From beginning we had problems with closing time, it closed 
very late at 1 or 2 o clock. All the time was very noisy and high sounding and the 

problem started. 

We have to wake up early morning to work so if music is until 2am and we wake up 
at 4am we sleep only 2 hours what it is not enough for adults. Sometimes after 

closing time some drank guys stay next the restaurant they sing, swear and fight. 
They damage stuff around, kicking waste bins... and so on. We hear everything from 

restaurant and feel like we sleep in the centre of their party. We are scared of their 

aggressive behaviour. Our front door is beside the entrance of the restaurant so they 
can easily kick out the door and enter into our flat! The other thing is they piss, spit 

and vomit around all restaurant what is terribly disgusting. 

The disco starts usually around 7pm (on summer it was around 10pm) – it’s always 
very loud. A few times we called a police. They arrived, for couple of minutes the 

party stopped, when the police left, everything started again. 

From 29th April 2010 we complain to City Council and we are waiting for solve the 

problem. The owner of restaurant said nobody can stop him and his business. He 
smiles straight to our faces. They threat us, we don’t feel safe in our own home. We 

are very tired of all situation. 

In December 2010 Pollution Control served a Noise Abatement Notice on the 
restaurant. It did not stop the noise at all. Over the Christmas period we suffered 

noise nuisance on numerous times. My boyfriend almost lost his job as a result of 
tiredness from not sleeping during the night. He got a warning from his employer 

this time. 

We have reported noise nuisance from the restaurant which happened since January 

2011. Pollution Control Officers installed noise monitoring equipment in my house 
many times and I keep reporting the noisy incidents but nothing has been improved. 

Sometimes the music has been played in restaurant as long as 2am, after the music 
is finished there is always noise from people in the restaurant we can hear them 

talking and laughing. We are hoping the committee will reduce the hours when the 

37



restaurant is open and remove music from the licence so we can have reasonable 

few hours of sleep during the night. 

Also I believe the first floor is not appropriate to have a restaurant there and we do 
not understand how Council can allow this Restaurant to be open on the first floor 

next to residential property. This is not a quiet family restaurant which would only 
serve food to customers, we feel that this is more like a club or a pub with people 

singing, shouting and dancing. 

Thank you. 

Kind regards, 

Valentina Vrablova 

& Piotr Kaznowski-Kicinger 

38



APPENDIX H

39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX I

47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70


	Agenda
	3 Application for Review of Premises Licence - Kaimas Lithuanian Restaurant, 561 - 563 Lincoln Road, Peterborough, PE1 2PB
	110628 - Licensing Act 2003 Sub Committee - Kaimas Lithuanian Restaurant - Appendix B
	110628 - Licensing Act 2003 Sub Committee - Kaimas Lithuanian Restaurant - Appendix C
	110628 - Licensing Act 2003 Sub Committee - Kaimas Lithuanian Restaurant - Appendix D
	110628 - Licensing Act 2003 Sub Committee - Kaimas Lithuanian Restaurant - Appendix E
	110628 - Licensing Act 2003 Sub Committee - Kaimas Lithuanian Restaurant - Appendix F
	110628 - Licensing Act 2003 Sub Committee - Kaimas Lithuanian Restaurant - Appendix G
	110628 - Licensing Act 2003 Sub Committee - Kaimas Lithuanian Restaurant - Appendix H
	110628 - Licensing Act 2003 Sub Committee - Kaimas Lithuanian Restuarant - Appendix I


